
Minutes 
Planning and Zoning Meeting 

July 20, 2009 
 
 
On this 20th day of July 2009, at 7:00 p.m., the Planning and Zoning Commission convened in a 
Regular Meeting, and the same being opened to the public at their regular meeting place; thereof, at 
City Hall, 303 S. Teel Drive, Devine, Texas.  Notice of said meeting having been prescribed in 
Chapter 551, Government Code, and Vernon’s Texas Codes, Annotated, and the following 
members thereof, being present, namely: 
 
 
    Doug Wilkins, Chairman  
    Onis Wiemers, Secretary 

Darrell Murdock 
Jim Lawler 

 
 
Absent being: Ed Dougherty and Mike Herring; thus, constituting a quorum. 
 
Personnel present:  Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer. 
 
Others present: None. 
 
Commissioner Wilkins called the meeting to order. 
 
The first order of business was to discuss and consider approving minutes from the meeting on May 
11th, 2009.  
 
The Planning & Zoning Commissioners reviewed the minutes.   
 
Motion made by Commissioner Lawler, seconded by Commissioner Wiemers to approve the 
minutes from the meeting on May 11th, 2009.   
 
    Ayes  --  Four 
    Nays  --  None 
    Absent  --  Two (Commissioner Dougherty) 
                (Commissioner Herring) 
 
Motion carried. 
 
The second order of business was to discuss and consider request made by Jim Rackley to change 
the zoning classification of property located at 505 Mc Annely Avenue and described as follows:  
Devine Subdivision, Block 77, Half part of Lot 4, from a Class A. Single Family Residence District 
to a Class F.  Neighborhood Shopping Center District for a prospective buyer to open a retail 
store/gift shop.  
 
 



Planning and Zoning Meeting 
July 20, 2009 
Page 2 
 
 
Commissioner Wiemers informed the Commissioners that he had been contacted by a Realtor, 
Cindy Morales regarding this item, and that she was unable to attend the meeting due to a school 
board meeting, and that Brenda Burford, the prospective buyer, was unable to attend the meeting 
because she was out of state until July 24, 2009.  Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer, 
explained to the commissioners that he had been out of the office at the time the notice of the 
meetings was published, and Maria Peña, Code Compliance Clerk, had published the notice as 
instructed to avoid delaying the meeting for another month; however, the meeting dates were not 
confirmed with the owner.   
 
Mr. Rawlings informed the commissioners that this property was next to the English Chiropractic 
Clinic, and was currently a residential tri-plex, which is currently a non-conforming use.  Mr. 
Rawlings stated that according to the zoning map, there is a small square drawn in the middle of the 
lot indicated Class F. Neighborhood Shopping District; however, the map does not indicate the 
division of the properties and it is uncertain what property this was intended for when it was marked 
on the map.   
 
Commissioner Lawler asked Mr. Rawlings if this zoning change would be consistent with the use of 
the neighboring properties.  Mr. Rawlings referred the commissioners to the map provided by the 
Medina County Appraisal District and informed the commissioners that the neighboring property, 
which is the current location of English Chiropractic Clinic, is currently zoned Class F. 
Neighborhood Shopping District.  He also explained that the owner desired to extend the zone 
Class F. Neighborhood Shopping District to include this property.  Mr. Rawlings stated that this 
zoning change was consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Commissioner Wiemers asked Mr. Rawlings if the neighboring property owners were informed of 
the requested zoning change.  Mr. Rawlings explained that notice had been published in the Devine 
News as required by the ordinance, which requires publication three times in the local paper during 
the three weeks preceding the meeting, but that the notification of the neighboring property owners 
within 200 feet was only for variance requests.  Commissioner Wiemers asked if there were any 
comments or opposition received regarding the publication.  Mr. Rawlings informed the 
commissioners that there were no comments received by the Code Compliance Department 
regarding the change in the zoning classification.  
 
Mr. Rawlings informed the commissioners that renovations would need to be made to convert the 
residential building into a commercial building, and informed the commissioners that the property 
was located within the floodplain.  He explained to the commissioners that, to the best of his 
knowledge, the buyer was aware that renovations needed to be made to the building.  Mr. Rawlings 
stated that the location of this property was near Hondo Avenue and therefore the city did not have 
any traffic concerns, and that there appeared to be more area for parking on this property than on 
similar businesses on Teel Drive and College Avenue. 
 
 
 



Planning and Zoning Meeting 
July 20, 2009 
Page 3 
 
 
Commissioner Lawler asked if the zoning would need to be changed back if someone wanted to 
change the business into a residential use.  Mr. Rawlings explained that the city’s zoning allowed for 
single family residential use anywhere in the city regardless of the zoning classification, and informed 
Commissioner Lawler that the Class F. Neighborhood Shopping Center District zone would still 
allow the property to be used as a single-family or multi-family residence. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Wiemers, seconded by Commissioner Lawler to recommend that 
the City Council change the zoning classification of property located at 505 Mc Annely Avenue and 
described as follows:  Devine Subdivision, Block 77, Half part of Lot 4, from a Class A. Single 
Family Residence District to a Class F.  Neighborhood Shopping Center District as requested by Jim 
Rackley. 
 
 

Ayes  --  Four 
    Nays  --  None 
    Absent  --  Two (Commissioner Dougherty) 
                                                                                                        (Commissioner Herring) 
 
Motion carried. 
 
The third order of business was to discuss monthly Code Compliance, Floodplain Administrator, 
and Fire Marshal Reports for May and June 2009. 
 
Commissioners held discussion with Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer, on permits issued, 
inspections conducted, ordinance violations, and enforcement.   
 
The Commissioners commented on the permit fees received, and Mr. Rawlings explained that these 
fees were due to the renovations for the School District campuses.  The Commissioners asked about 
the inspections for the renovations to the school district campuses and Mr. Rawlings informed them 
that numerous inspections had been conducted and that there had been no construction problems 
or failed inspections that he was aware of.   
 
The Commissioners inquired about the ordinance violations and enforcement.  Mr. Rawlings 
explained that the Code Compliance Department was attempting a more personal approach by 
attempting to establish personal contact with violators; however, if this is not possible, 10-day 
certified letters are being sent as a last resort before sending the violator to court.  He explained that 
this seems to be working well; however, it has created a larger delay in the amount of time from 
when the violation is observed to when charges are filed in court for property owners who make no 
effort to comply.  The Commissioners were pleased with the amount of property owners that had 
complied in comparison to the number of violations, and stated that finding solutions to problems 
and working with the citizens was better than sending them all to court, which could cause more 
resistance for the citizens to comply.   
 



Planning and Zoning Meeting 
July 20, 2009 
Page 4 
 
 
Commissioner Lawler asked Mr. Rawlings about the impounded signs.  Mr. Rawlings explained that 
the Code Compliance Department had been making an effort to improve the appearance of the city 
by removing snipe signs, and stated that the ordinance required that the signs be retained for thirty 
days before they could be disposed or auctioned to give the owners of the sign an opportunity to 
claim them, which would also require the payment of impound fees as established by city ordinance. 
The commissioners stated that they felt that the Code Compliance Department was doing a good 
job. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Planning and Zoning Commission, Chairman 
Wilkins adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
             
                             Chairman 
 
 
____________________________ 
                    Secretary 


